Faculty Consultative Committee (FCC)
June 6, 2019
Minutes of the Meeting

These minutes reflect discussion and debate at a meeting of a committee of the University of Minnesota
Senate; none of the comments, conclusions, or actions reported in these minutes reflect the views of, nor
are they binding on, the senate, the administration, or the Board of Regents.

[In these minutes: Pay Date Change; University of Minnesota Rochester Seat on FCC
Discussion; FCC/Provost’s Office Co-Sponsored Forum; Sandia National Labs; Committee
Business]

PRESENT: Amy Pittenger (chair), Sheri Breen, Phil Buhlmann (vice chair), Sue Chu, Colleen
Flaherty Manchester, Tabitha Grier-Reed, Peggy Nelson, Robert Blair, Les Drewes, Jennifer
Goodnough, Donna Spannaus-Martin, Philip Zelazo, Catherine French

REGRETS: Lynn Lukkas, Ned Patterson, Eric Watkins, Frank Gigler, Jessica Larson, Peh Ng,
Wendy St. Peter

GUESTS: Amy Kucera, senior director, OHR Operations; Vice President for Research Chris
Cramer

OTHERS ATTENDING: Deputy Chief of Staff for Policy and Initiative Julie Reuvers, Office
of the President

1. Pay date change: Professor Pittenger convened the meeting and welcomed those present. She
then turned to Amy Kucera, senior director, Office of Human Resources (OHR) Operations, for
information on an upcoming pay date change. Ms. Kucera explained that the University will be
adjusting the first pay date in 2020 by one day; the January 1 pay date will be moved to January
2 because January 1 is a holiday. Typically, when a pay date falls on a holiday, the University
pays employees the day before the holiday, but, because doing so would put the pay date in the
2019 tax year, it is unable to do so. The University needs to make sure employees’ earnings are
reported in the correct tax year. While OHR 1is not anticipating this to be a big issue, it plans to
broadly communicate the pay date change to all employees so they can plan accordingly.

Hearing no questions, Professor Pittenger thanked Ms. Kucera for the update.

2. University of Minnesota Rochester campus seat on the FCC: Professor Pittenger noted that
last fall Vice Provost Jeffrey Ratliffe Crain, University of Minnesota Rochester campus (UMR),
and former Morris representative on the FCC, reached out to Professor Joe Konstan to explore
there being a UMR seat on the FCC. In the spring of this year, said Professor Pittenger, she, and
Professors Buhlmann and Drewes had a conversation with representatives from UMR about
pursuing this idea further. Then, a small group of FCC members traveled to UMR in April where
this discussion continued. During these spring 2019 conversations, it was clear that the UMR
faculty (tenured/tenure-track and student-based faculty, who are not tenured/tenure-track) were



ambivalent about having a seat on the FCC because they already had a lot of work on their
plates. At the conclusion of the April UMR meeting, said Professor Pittenger, two options were
proposed:

e Have UMR elect a UMR faculty member (tenure/tenure-track or non-tenured) to be a
regular “guest” on FCC to help them decide one way or the other whether they wanted an
actual seat on the FCC.

e Ask Committee on Committees to specifically consider UMR tenure/tenure-track and
non-tenured faculty to sit on other Senate committees.

Professor Flaherty Manchester asked suppose UMR decides it wants to have a regular, voting
seat on FCC, then what would the next steps be. She suggested the FCC have a plan for how to
handle this. Professor Pittenger said that if this were the case, the Senate’s constitution, bylaws
and rules would have to be changed and voted on.

Professor Goodnough noted that during the FCC visit to UMR, it was brought up that the FCC,
in many ways, is the last stop for many issues, which started in other Senate committees. It
seemed like some of the UMR faculty were intrigued by the idea of serving on other Senate
committees, in part, because that would require less of a time commitment. Professor Breen
agreed that having UMR representation on other Senate committees should be the first step, but
at the same time she said she likes the idea of having a UMR representative on the FCC when
they are ready. Professor French noted that an advantage of having a seat on the FCC is that
members have access to both the administration as well as the ex-officio members who chair
Faculty Affairs, Finance & Planning, Academic Freedom & Tenure, Research, AHC FCC and
Educational Policy.

Professor Pittenger noted that starting next year (2019 - 2020) there will be a UMR
representative on Educational Policy. She added that she would like to see Committee on
Committees (ConC) more actively recruit UMR faculty and staff to serve on Senate committees.
That said, she volunteered to reach out to the ConC chair to make this request. In the meantime,
she proposed encouraging UMR to elect someone to serve as a consistent “guest” on FCC for the
upcoming academic year while the FCC works on changing its bylaws to officially give UMR a
seat on FCC. Professor Flaherty Manchester commented that given the change in administration
that this will be a particularly important time for UMR to have a voice at the table. Professor
Goodnough suggested UMR think about having one of their already elected senators serve as the
consistent “guest” on FCC until a seat is actually created. Professor Pittenger replied that if this
makes it less onerous for UMR to find someone to fill the FCC seat, she would be fine with that
approach. Professor Goodnough recalled from the UMR visit a discussion about having
non-tenure track faculty participate in faculty governance and that she thought Vice Provost for
Faculty and Academic Affairs Rebecca Ropers was going to look into this further. That said,
should the FCC follow-up with Vice Provost Ropers to see where things are at? Professor
Pittenger reminded members that the FCC created a task force to look at the composition of the
FCC. She noted that this will be one of the topics that the FCC discusses at its August retreat,
and Vice Provost Ropers will participate in this discussion. Professor Pittenger also reported that
Vice Provost Ropers contacted her and Professor Buhlmann recently to say that she has been



asked to participate in a panel discussion at a national conference that will discuss this very
subject.

3. Next steps following Board decision to not rename four buildings on the Twin Cities
campus: Professor Pittenger reported that she and Professor Buhlmann have met a few times
with Provost Hanson to talk about next steps following the Board’s decision to not rename four
buildings on the Twin Cities campus. She noted that she and Professor Buhlmann told Provost
Hanson that they were apprehensive about reigniting this issue and making matters worse.
Having said that, what is being proposed is a forum that would be structured similar to the PEN
America event that was held in April, which she proceeded to describe in a fair amount of detail.
The Provost’s Office will send out an email announcement this summer indicating that an event
is in the process of being planned and that more information will be forthcoming. Professor
Pittenger then asked for members' input.

Who will be invited to participate in the event, asked Professor Drewes? Professor Pittenger
replied that the whole University community will be invited.

What are the goals for this event, asked Professor Zelazo? Professor Pittenger said she expects
that the roles and responsibilities of the standing committee that was created after the Task Force
on Building Names and Institutional History finished its work will be identified. Hopefully, the
event will generate collective ideas that can shape future decisions related to building namings,
un-namings, etc. Professor Zelazo said it will be important for attendees to work together
collaboratively to come up with ideas rather than having a debate. Professor French said she
attended the PEN America event in April and what will be particularly important will be the
seating at the tables and making it clear who is the moderator. Professor Pittenger agreed and
added that it will also be important to identify discussion topics for the table conversations.
Members went on to brainstorm about the event and came up with the following ideas:

e Provide attendees with information/materials on the topics of discussion in an effort to

level the playing field for all participants.

e Ensure the opening speaker sets the right tone for the event.

e Think about holding three conversations versus just one. The topics/themes selected
could be both forward thinking (visionary), e.g., Who Will Comprise the University’s
Student Body Ten-Years from Now, and historical in nature.

Promote the event system wide.

Consider holding at least one conversation on a Saturday.

Invite outstate regents to participate at one of the campuses close to them.

Summarize the table discussions.

Use experienced facilitators, who are trained in drawing ideas out of people, to lead the

table discussions, e.g., Better Angels.

Intentionally plan the discussions so they result in actionable items.

e Invite the Board of Regents to help identify the table discussion topics.

e Use the Center for Deliberative Democracy at Stanford as a resource for how to run these
events.

e Use the University’s internal resources, e.g., Technological Leadership Institute, to help
facilitate/moderate these events.



https://cdd.stanford.edu/
https://tli.umn.edu/

As members think of other ideas, said Professor Pittenger, please send them to her and Renee
Dempsey, Senate staff.

4. Sandia National Labs: Professor Pittenger welcomed Vice President for Research Chris
Cramer who had asked to be on the committee’s agenda. VP Cramer said he would like to
engage governance early on concerning an exciting opportunity for the University, and would
like to hear members’ thoughts to help inform next steps. That said, Sandia National Labs has a
secure facility in Shoreview, Minnesota, and they are interested in pursuing a more formal
relationship with the University of Minnesota. He noted that Sandia has reached out to the
University with the hope of exploring a formal memorandum of understanding (MOU) between
the two organizations. With that as background, VP Cramer asked to hear members’ thoughts on
this opportunity as well as any concerns they may have.

Professor Zelazo asked what can be learned from Sandia’s partnerships with other universities,
e.g., Berkeley. Have any concerns been voiced, particularly given Sandia’s strong military ties?
VP Cramer said that one component of Sandia is (and has been since its founding) a weapons
lab, but this is not the type of work the University would be engaged in with them. He explained
that when Sandia partners with other entities, they typically form a working group, which, in the
case of the University of Minnesota, would be comprised of representatives from Sandia and the
University, and this working group would make decisions about potential investments, etc. For
example, Sandia has expressed an interest in working with the University on talent recruitment
(student internships, scientist exchanges), and areas of research overlap including materials
science, cybersecurity, food security, renewable energy, and others. Given the University’s
history and its strong Openness in Research policy, the University would not be involved in any
of the classified work that Sandia does. Politically, said Professor Zelazo, it seems like a
Sandia/University of Minnesota partnership could be a win for the State and University.

Professor Breen said she appreciates VP Cramer bringing this matter to the FCC early. While she
is interested and intrigued about a possible partnership with Sandia, it will be critically important
to talk about this partnership not only in terms of economics, research, and education but the
political and philosophical/ethical aspects as well. Even if a MOU with Sandia was limited in its
scope (what kinds of work could be done), it is important to remember that Sandia and
Honeywell have a long history of on-the-ground, direct action protests. Having a relationship
with Sandia, said Professor Breen, has the potential for considerable political debate, which
needs to be discussed upfront before any commitment is made.

Would a partnership with Sandia be a system-wide arrangement, asked Professor Goodnough?
VP Cramer said it is really too early to know, but he does not see a reason why Sandia would not
want to engage with the entire University of Minnesota system, although the bulk of the system’s
science, engineering, and technology research does take place in the Twin Cities and Duluth.

Professor Nelson commented that she is in Speech-Language-Hearing Sciences and her
department is being approached regularly by the Department of Defense about working together;
these are conversations the University needs to be involved in.



Professor French said she is familiar with Sandia’s work in the Department of Energy arena, e.g.,
aging nuclear reactors, and so she believes there are definitely opportunities for collaboration
that could benefit the University. While, as mentioned previously, there are defense issues, the
University is in a position to help with other issues that need to be addressed. In any partnership
with Sandia, said VP Cramer, the University will need to be upfront about its values.

Being unfamiliar with Sandia, Professor Grier-Reed asked VP Cramer about the ethical pitfalls
related to working with them. Questions that arise, said VP Cramer, include but are not limited to
- how should a public research university engage with a national defense organization?

Professor Buhlmann noted that he has seen a number of National Science Foundation (NSF)
graduate student fellowship applications from undergraduates who have had experience working
at Sandia. Sandia has done quite a lot of work nurturing diverse undergraduate students, and this
could be an opportunity for the University. Additionally, he said he has heard research talks from
Sandia employees on various topics such as detection of disease, health monitoring, food safety,
and chemical sensing, etc. In his opinion, there is a lot to be gained from a collaboration with
Sandia.

Professor Drewes asked about the size of the Shoreview facility. VP Cramer said he believes
they have about 20 - 30 employees, and he believes the focus at this facility is on security. He
also noted that the University’s connection with Sandia originated with the Food Protection and
Defense Institute led by Dr. Amy Kircher. Sandia has worked with her institute in the past to
explore ways to avoid adulteration of the food system, etc.

Hearing no further comments or questions regarding Sandia, FCC members asked VP Cramer
other questions.

Will the moratorium on fetal tissue research issued by President Trump have an impact on the
University, asked Professor Nelson? Well before this moratorium, said VP Cramer, the
Minnesota legislature was interested in the University’s fetal tissue research and required
rigorous reporting on an annual basis. Last year there were only four nominal research projects
using fetal tissue. While the moratorium will not affect the University in an operational way at
present, it could have an impact on the landscape of research done at the University that needs
fetal tissue.

Please provide a provost search update, requested Professor Nelson. VP Cramer reported that the
position description has been finalized. Professor Pittenger said the search committee hopes to
bring in three to five candidates for public forum interviews in late September, and to hopefully
have someone hired well before the end of the year.

Hearing no other questions, VP Cramer proceeded to share some good news, which included:
e The National Academy of Inventors ranked the top 100 worldwide universities granted
U.S. utility patents in 2018, and the University of Minnesota ranked 20th (89 patents). In
2014, the University of Minnesota ranked 50th.



https://foodprotection.umn.edu/
https://foodprotection.umn.edu/
https://academyofinventors.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Top-100-2018.pdf
https://academyofinventors.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Top-100-2018.pdf

e The seventh University of Minnesota start-up (B-MoGen Biotechnologies) in the last two
years “successfully exited.” B-MoGen Biotechnologies was acquired by Bio-Techne. So
far this year (July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019), the University has launched 17 successful
start-up companies.

In request to a question from Professor Drewes about the University’s budget request, VP
Cramer reported that the University will get half of what it requested. To address this shortage,
unit reallocations have been increased to 0.8%. Additionally, the proposed tuition increases that
will go before the Board of Regents have been somewhat increased relative to what had been
originally planned. VP Cramer further noted that the legislature put language into the budget that
directed Minnesota State Colleges and Universities (MnSCU) to have a tuition increase of no
more than 3% and suggested the same to the University. This articulation of a need for tuition
increases provides a reality check for the Board of Regents because it acknowledges that the
legislature recognizes that some degree of tuition increase may be necessary to make up for the
reduced amount of state funding. The University will continue to do the best that it can with the
funds it receives and will also continue to look for other sources of funding.

How will the University’s agreement with Fairview impact the Medical School and the other
health science schools, asked Professor Drewes? It is too early to say, said VP Cramer. He noted
that the Office of Academic Clinical Affairs has been holding brainstorming sessions to decide
what to do with the capital it will receive from this partnership. At the moment, the focus is on
increasing clinical trials but VP Cramer suggested that Professor Drewes contact Dr. Jakub Tolar
for more detailed information.

Professor French said a number of other universities, e.g., University of I[llinois Urbana-
Champaign have research parks and wondered about the status of the Minnesota Innovation
Center initiative. VP Cramer said currently the University and the University of Minnesota
Foundation own a significant portion of land just east of the McNamara Alumni Center called
the Motley district. The first development for this area is the 2407 building (former Days Inn),
which has been in a holding pattern until decisions are made about what to do with it. The grand
vision for this real estate incorporates three elements: 1) increased clinic and hospital space; 2)
engagement with the community, e.g., restaurants, hotels, to draw people into the campus; and 3)
a themed research section. The Minnesota Innovation Collaborative (recently signed legislation
by Governor Walz) is an undertaking by the State of Minnesota to create a better ecosystem for
start-up companies across Minnesota and is excited to work with the University of Minnesota.
VP Cramer said that he and Vice President for University Services Mike Berthelsen charged a
committee to essentially catalog all the University’s industrial relationships. Once the committee
is done with its work, the University will be in a better position to strategically align these
businesses. In response, Professor Nelson suggested grouping hearing device businesses, some of
which are already in Minnesota and others who want to be in Minnesota.

Hearing no further questions, VP Cramer thanked members for their time and said he would keep
the FCC as well as the Senate Research Committee apprised of any developments related to
Sandia.


https://www.prnewswire.com/news-releases/bio-techne-to-acquire-b-mogen-biotechnologies-inc-300862053.html
https://clinicalaffairs.umn.edu/
https://researchpark.illinois.edu/
https://researchpark.illinois.edu/
https://finance-commerce.com/2013/02/finding-a-recipe-for-a-university-of-minnesota-research-park/
https://finance-commerce.com/2013/02/finding-a-recipe-for-a-university-of-minnesota-research-park/
https://motleympls.com/
https://carlsonschool.umn.edu/conferences/tech-cities-conference/program/motley-and-2407
https://mn.gov/deed/assets/mic-final_tcm1045-372157.pdf

5. Committee business: The following information was shared with the committee:

e Professor Pittenger provided a quick update on the agenda for the August FCC retreat.

e Professor Pittenger reported that it is likely that Mila Koumpilova, a Star Tribune
journalist, will be writing another story about the building naming issue. (NOTE: Since
this meeting, an article was published in the Star Tribune on June 8, 2019 - Documents
reveal more about University of Minnesota’s rushed effort to rename buildings.)

e Professor Pittenger noted that Mila Koumpilova is also planning to write a story about the
University’s partnerships with China, e.g., taking a broad look at student recruitment,
alumni relations, partnerships with higher education institutions and joint research
projects. She said if any members know of faculty who are doing work in China to let her
know and she will provide them with Ms. Koumpilova’s contact information.

e Professor Pittenger reported that she and Professor Buhlmann recently met with Regents
Beeson and Rosha, and will also be meeting with the four new regents, but these meeting
dates have not yet been set up.

e Professor Pittenger thanked those members present who would no longer be serving on
the FCC for their service on the committee.

6. Adjournment: Hearing no further business, Professor Pittenger adjourned the meeting.

Renee Dempsey
University Senate Office


http://www.startribune.com/documents-reveal-more-about-university-of-minnesota-s-rushed-effort-to-rename-buildings/511023971/
http://www.startribune.com/documents-reveal-more-about-university-of-minnesota-s-rushed-effort-to-rename-buildings/511023971/

